

## IDAPA 02 – IDAHO STATE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

### 02.03.01 – RULES GOVERNING PESTICIDE MANAGEMENT PLANS FOR GROUND WATER PROTECTION

#### DOCKET NO. 02-0301-2401 (ZBR CHAPTER REWRITE)

#### NOTICE OF RULEMAKING – PROPOSED RULE

**AUTHORITY:** In compliance with Section 67-5221(1), Idaho Code, notice is hereby given that this agency has initiated proposed rulemaking procedures. The action is authorized pursuant to Sections 22-3419, 22-3421, Idaho Code.

**PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:** Public hearing(s) concerning this rulemaking will be scheduled if requested in writing by twenty-five (25) persons, a political subdivision, or an agency, not later than October 16, 2024.

The hearing site(s) will be accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for accommodation must be made not later than five (5) days prior to the hearing, to the agency address below.

**DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY:** The following is a nontechnical explanation of the substance and purpose of the proposed rulemaking:

This rule is being presented for authorization as part of the ISDA’s plan to review each rule every 5 years. Redundant language that is verbatim in statute has been removed, consistent with the Governor’s [Zero-Based Regulation Executive Order](#).

The rule was reviewed over the course of two negotiated rulemaking meetings, and that review benefited from the participation of program stakeholders. No negative comments were submitted as part of this rulemaking process.

This rule clarifies the procedure for testing and monitoring groundwater for pesticides and remedies of the Department for non-compliance.

**FEE SUMMARY:** The following is a specific description of the fee or charge imposed or increased: There is no change in fee or charge.

**FISCAL IMPACT:** The following is a specific description, if applicable, of any negative fiscal impact on the state General Fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) during the fiscal year resulting from this rulemaking:

There is no fiscal impact on the state General Fund greater than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000).

**NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING:** Pursuant to Section 67-5220(1), Idaho Code, negotiated rulemaking was conducted. The Notice of Intent to Promulgate Rules - Negotiated Rulemaking was published in the July 3, 2024 Idaho Administrative Bulletin, [Volume 24-7, Pages 20 and 21](#).

**INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE:** Pursuant to Section 67-5229(2)(a), Idaho Code, the following is a brief synopsis of why the materials cited are being incorporated by reference into this rule:

There are no changes in documents already incorporated by reference.

**IDAHO CODE SECTION 22-101A STATEMENT:** Pursuant to 22-101A(1), for any rule promulgated or adopted by the director which is broader in scope or more stringent than federal law or regulations, or which regulates an activity not regulated by the federal government, the director shall identify the portions of the adopted rule that are broader in scope or more stringent than federal law or rules, or which regulate an activity not regulated by the federal government. The following sections of the rule are broader in scope, more stringent than federal law or regulations, or regulate an activity not regulated by the federal government:

The federal government does not regulate this state run program. This activity is defined in Idaho Code.

The detailed 22-101A analysis can be found on the agency’s website at [www.agri.idaho.gov](http://www.agri.idaho.gov).

**ASSISTANCE ON TECHNICAL QUESTIONS, SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS:** For assistance on technical questions concerning the proposed rule, contact Lloyd Knight at [lloyd.knight@isda.idaho.gov](mailto:lloyd.knight@isda.idaho.gov).

Anyone may submit written comments regarding this proposed rulemaking. All written comments must be directed to the undersigned and must be delivered on or before October 23, 2024.

DATED this 2nd day of October, 2024.

Lloyd Knight  
Deputy Director  
Idaho Department of Agriculture  
2270 Old Penitentiary Road  
P.O. Box 7249  
Boise, Idaho 83707  
Phone: (208) 332-8615  
Email: [lloyd.knight@isda.idaho.gov](mailto:lloyd.knight@isda.idaho.gov)

**THE FOLLOWING IS THE PROPOSED TEXT OF DOCKET NO. 02-0301-2401**  
**(ZBR Chapter Rewrite)**

**02.03.01 – RULES GOVERNING PESTICIDE MANAGEMENT PLANS**  
**FOR GROUND WATER PROTECTION**

**000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.**

~~This chapter is adopted under the legal authority of Sections 22-3418, 22-3419, and 22-3421, Idaho Code.~~

~~(3-31-22)( )~~

**001. ~~TITLE AND SCOPE.~~**

~~01. Title. The title of this chapter is IDAPA 02.03.01, “Rules Governing Pesticide Management Plans for Ground Water Protection.”~~

~~(3-31-22)~~

~~02. Scope. This chapter establishes a process for responding to pesticide detections in ground water.~~

~~(3-31-22)( )~~

**002. ~~WRITTEN INTERPRETATIONS.~~**

~~There are no written interpretations of these rules.~~

~~(3-31-22)~~

**003. ~~ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS.~~**

~~There is no provision for administrative appeal before the Idaho Department of Agriculture under this chapter. Hearing and appeal rights are pursuant to Title 67, Chapter 52, Idaho Code.~~

~~(3-31-22)~~

**~~002. -- 003. (RESERVED)~~**

**004. INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE.**

The following documents are incorporated by reference into this chapter:

(3-31-22)

**01. Dimethyl Tetrachloroterephthalate (DCPA) Pesticide Management Plan.** The June 2007 edition published by the Idaho State Department of Agriculture. Copies of this document may be obtained from the

Idaho State Department of Agriculture. (3-31-22)

**~~005. ADDRESS, OFFICE HOURS, TELEPHONE, FAX NUMBERS, WEB ADDRESS.~~**

~~The Idaho State Department of Agriculture central office is located at 2270 Old Penitentiary Road, Boise, ID 83712-8298. The office is open from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., except Saturday, Sunday, and legal holidays. The mailing address is PO Box 7249, Boise, Idaho 83707. The phone number is (208) 332-8500 and the fax number is (208) 334-2170. The Department web address is <https://agri.idaho.gov/>.~~ (3-31-22)

**~~006. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT COMPLIANCE.~~**

~~These rules are public records available for inspection and copying at the Department.~~ (3-31-22)

**~~007~~. -- 009. (RESERVED)**

**010. DEFINITIONS.**

The Idaho Department of Agriculture adopts the definitions set forth in Section 22-3401, Idaho Code, and the following definitions: (3-31-22)

**01. Aquifer.** A geological unit of permeable saturated material capable of yielding economically significant quantities of water to wells and springs. (3-31-22)

**02. Beneficial Uses.** Current or future uses of ground water supplies including, but not limited to domestic, industrial, agricultural, aquacultural, and mining. (3-31-22)

**03. Best Management Practice.** A practice or combination of practices determined to be the most effective and practical means of preventing or reducing pesticide contamination to ground water and interconnected surface water from nonpoint and point sources to achieve water quality goals and protect the beneficial uses of the water. (3-31-22)

**04. Constituent.** Any chemical, ion, radionuclide, synthetic organic compound, microorganism, waste or other substance occurring in ground water. (3-31-22)

**05. Contaminant.** Any chemical, ion, radionuclide, synthetic organic compound, microorganism, waste or other substance which does not occur naturally in ground water or which naturally occurs at a lower concentration. (3-31-22)

**06. Contamination.** The direct or indirect introduction into ground water of any contaminant caused in whole or in part by human activities. (3-31-22)

**07. Ground Water.** Any water of the state which occurs beneath the surface of the earth in a saturated geological formation of rock or soil. (3-31-22)

**08. Health Advisory Level.** Guidance for the maximum allowable or acceptable daily concentration of a pesticide in drinking water in the absence of or prior to a MCL being set. (3-31-22)

**09. Maximum Contaminant Level.** Maximum allowable or acceptable daily concentration of a pesticide in drinking water that may be consumed over a lifetime. (3-31-22)

**10. Pesticide Management Standard.** The United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resource Conservation Service Conservation Practice Standard, Idaho Pesticide Management Code 595, or the Idaho Agricultural Pollution Abatement Plan -- Pesticide Management Standard Component Practice. (3-31-22)

**11. Pesticide Use.** The mixing, application, handling, transport, storage, display, distribution, and disposal of pesticides and their containers. (3-31-22)

**12. Projected Future Beneficial Uses.** Various uses of ground water, such as drinking water, aquaculture, industrial, mining or agriculture, that are practical and achievable in the future based on hydrogeologic conditions, water quality, future land use activities and social/economic considerations. (3-31-22)

13. **Reference Dose.** Allowable or acceptable dose of a pesticide in terms of mg pesticide/kg body weight that can be ingested in one day (acute reference dose) or on a daily basis over a lifetime (chronic reference dose). (3-31-22)

14. **Reference Point.** Numerical indicators of the toxicity of a substance based on test data and other reliable health effects information. (3-31-22)

15. **Susceptibility.** A method of describing the flow of water to, and through, the ground water resource based on physical factors such as hydraulic conductivity, porosity, hydraulic gradients, recharge, interactions with surface water, and transport through the unsaturated zone without considering specific natural or anthropogenic sources of contamination. (3-31-22)

16. **Vulnerability.** Ground water characterized by a potential for contaminants to enter and be transported within the flow system. Determinations of ground water vulnerability will include consideration of land use practices and aquifer characteristics. (3-31-22)

**011. ABBREVIATIONS:**

- 01. ~~APAP. Agricultural Pollution Abatement Plan. (3-31-22)~~
- 02. ~~BMP. Best Management Practice. (3-31-22)~~
- 03. ~~DCPA. Dimethyl Tetrachloroterephthalate. (3-31-22)~~
- 04. ~~DEQ. Department of Environmental Quality. (3-31-22)~~
- 05. ~~EPA. Environmental Protection Agency. (3-31-22)~~
- 06. ~~HAL. Health Advisory Level. (3-31-22)~~
- 07. ~~MCL. Maximum Contaminant Level. (3-31-22)~~
- 08. ~~NRCS. Natural Resources Conservation Service. (3-31-22)~~
- 09. ~~PMP. Pesticide Management Plan. (3-31-22)~~
- 10. ~~QAPP. Quality Assurance Project Plan. (3-31-22)~~
- 11. ~~QMP. Quality Management Plan. (3-31-22)~~
- 12. ~~RfD. Reference Dose. (3-31-22)~~
- 13. ~~SCC. Soil Conservation Commission. (3-31-22)~~
- 14. ~~USDA. United States Department of Agriculture. (3-31-22)~~

~~012~~1. -- 049. (RESERVED)

050. CHEMICAL SPECIFIC **PESTICIDE MANAGEMENT PLANS (PMPS).**

01. **Creating PMPs.** The Director shall develop and implement chemical specific PMPs (Section 200) for certain pesticides in geographical areas ~~as determined in Section 400~~ when: (3-31-22)(    )

a. The level of a pesticide found in ground water is equal to or greater than fifty percent (50%) of the reference point and is scientifically validated; (3-31-22)

b. EPA restricts the sale or use of a pesticide in the state, or otherwise initiates action against a pesticide because of ground water concerns for a pesticide, unless such PMP is not deemed necessary by the Director; (3-31-22)

c. EPA's action, restriction, or prohibition will be implemented unless the state develops an adequate PMP; or (3-31-22)

d. A pesticide is conditionally registered by EPA because of ground water concerns. (3-31-22)

~~02. PMP Compliance. No person shall use a pesticide in a manner inconsistent with the chemical specific PMP within a designated geographical area. (3-31-22)~~

**051. -- ~~099~~100. (RESERVED)**

**100. CONTENTS OF A CHEMICAL SPECIFIC PMP.**

~~01. Required Elements of a PMP. (3-31-22)~~

~~a. Actions to prevent pesticide contamination that are based on beneficial uses and vulnerability that address applicable aspects of the pesticide use; and (3-31-22)~~

~~b. Actions to prevent or minimize further presence of the pesticide in ground water and to provide protection for the present and projected future beneficial use of the ground water. (3-31-22)~~

~~02. Elements That May Be Included in a PMP. A PMP may include but is not limited to the following elements: (3-31-22)~~

~~a. Identification of geographical areas where a pesticide may be used; (3-31-22)~~

~~b. Pesticide, soil, hydrogeological, and meteorological characteristics; (3-31-22)~~

~~c. BMPs; (3-31-22)~~

~~d. Identification of ground water areas with pesticide detection(s); (3-31-22)~~

~~e. Certification, licensing, training, and education requirements for persons using the pesticide; (3-31-22)~~

~~f. Identification and establishment of an area of pesticide restriction requiring preventative measures; (3-31-22)~~

~~g. Pesticide application rates and timing and related use criteria; (3-31-22)~~

~~h. Integrated pest management information; (3-31-22)~~

~~i. Other requirements for pesticides, as set forth in the Idaho Pesticide and Chemigation Law (Title 22, Chapter 34, Idaho Code), and IDAPA 02.03.03, "Rules Governing Pesticide and Chemigation Use and Application"; or (3-31-22)~~

~~j. Other requirements as listed by the EPA in rule or guidance. (3-31-22)~~

**101. MANAGEMENT PLANS ADOPTED BY RULEMAKING AND REVIEW.**

~~01. Adoption Through Rulemaking. The Director shall adopt chemical specific PMPs through rulemaking. (3-31-22)~~

~~02. PMP Review. The Director shall review chemical specific PMPs every two (2) years to determine~~

if the requirements contained in the plans need to be modified based on new scientific data and information. (3-31-22)

**102. -- 149. (RESERVED)**

**150. GROUND WATER QUALITY REFERENCE POINTS.**

**01. Reference Points.** The Director will use reference points for pesticides in ground water, based on the following order of availability: (3-31-22)

**a.** Idaho rules of DEQ, IDAPA 58.01.11, "Ground Water Quality," Subsection 200.01.a. specific to pesticide primary constituent standards which were adopted from EPA MCLs; or (3-31-22)

**b.** EPA Health Advisory Levels (HALs) identified in the 2006 Edition of the EPA Drinking Water Standards and Health Advisories, EPA 822-R-06-013; or (3-31-22)

**c.** EPA Reference Dose (RfD) identified in the 2006 Edition of the EPA Drinking Water Standards and Health Advisories, EPA 822-R-06-013; or (3-31-22)

**d.** A reference point based on: (3-31-22)

**i.** Best scientific information currently available on adverse effects of the contaminant(s); and (3-31-22)

**ii.** Protection of a beneficial use(s); and (3-31-22)

**iii.** Practical quantitation levels for the pesticides, if they exceed the levels identified in IDAPA 58.01.11, "Ground Water Quality Rule," Subsection 200.01.a. (3-31-22)

**02. HAL and RfD Guide.** The Director shall use the EPA's HAL and RfD number associated with the effects on a person weighing seventy (70) kilograms and drinking two (2) liters of water per day over a lifetime. (3-31-22)

**151. -- 199. (RESERVED)**

**200. RESPONSE TO A PESTICIDE DETECTION.**

~~This section describes the four (4) response levels for responding to pesticide detections in ground water. (3-31-22)~~

**01. Level One Response.** When a pesticide or its metabolite(s) is detected at or above the detection limit yet below twenty percent (20%) of the reference point, the Director shall notify well users or well owners of pesticide(s) detection and continue ground water monitoring; (3-31-22)(    )

~~**a.** The Director shall: (3-31-22)~~

~~**i.** Notify well users or well owners of pesticide(s) detection; (3-31-22)~~

~~**ii.** Continue ground water monitoring; (3-31-22)~~

~~**ba.** The Director may: (3-31-22)~~

~~**i.** Provide additional information to pesticide applicators within vulnerable areas; (3-31-22)~~

~~**ii.** Review use practices, soils, hydrogeology, and vulnerability within the area of pesticide detection(s); (3-31-22)~~

~~**iii.** Review state records for previous point source or potential violations in accordance with the Idaho Pesticide and Chemigation Law (Title 22, Chapter 34, Idaho Code); (3-31-22)~~

- iv. Review existing monitoring data within area to check for previous detections; (3-31-22)
  - v. Conduct outreach in local area applicable to relevant data and information; and (3-31-22)
  - vi. Encourage voluntary BMPs consistent with the APAP. (3-31-22)
- 02. Level Two Response.** When a pesticide or its metabolite(s) is detected at twenty percent (20%) to less than fifty percent (50%) of the reference point; (3-31-22)
- ~~a. The Director shall;~~ (~~3-31-22~~)
  - ~~ia.~~ Implement actions in Subsection 200.01 in the area of pesticide detection; (3-31-22)
  - ~~ib.~~ Establish area of pesticide concern, in accordance with Section 400, within area of pesticide detection; (3-31-22)
  - ~~ic.~~ Develop a monitoring plan and monitor to determine trends and fluctuations in pesticide concentrations; (3-31-22)
  - ~~id.~~ Determine likely source(s) while notifying and working with the appropriate parties including but not limited to: pesticide registrant(s), dealer(s), applicator(s) and producer(s) to determine likely source(s); (3-31-22)
  - ~~ie.~~ Determine if pesticide detection(s) is from point or nonpoint source; (3-31-22)
  - ~~if.~~ Promote voluntary BMPs or other measures; evaluate BMP effectiveness, and change BMPs if needed; (3-31-22)
  - ~~ig.~~ Require the utilization of the Idaho NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Pesticide Management Code 595. (3-31-22)
  - ~~ih.~~ The Director may: (3-31-22)
    - i. Develop a chemical specific PMP per pesticide, unless already mandated through EPA Rule to do so; (3-31-22)
    - ii. Monitor additional domestic wells in the hydrogeological up gradient and down gradient area; and (3-31-22)
    - iii. Conduct site specific pesticide use inspections within the area of detection(s). (3-31-22)
- 03. Level Three Response.** When a pesticide or its metabolite(s) is detected at fifty percent (50%) to less than one hundred percent (100%) of the reference point, the Director shall: (3-31-22)
- ~~a.~~ Implement actions in Subsections 200.02.a. through 200.02.e., and 200.02.g. through 200.02.j. in the area of pesticide detection through 200.02.g in the area of pesticide detection; (~~3-31-22~~)(    )
  - ~~b.~~ Establish an area of pesticide restriction, in accordance with Section 400 and Section 22-3419, Idaho Code, when the Director determines ground water contamination resulted from the application of a pesticide in accordance with the label; (~~3-31-22~~)(    )
  - ~~e.~~ Restrict the use of the pesticide according to Section 22-3418, Idaho Code; (3-31-22)
  - ~~ec.~~ Install monitoring wells as soon as possible, if the Director determines installation to be necessary based on severity of risk, to evaluate ground water quality, flow direction, and the effectiveness of preventative measures; (3-31-22)

~~ed.~~ Assist well users or well owners within the area of pesticide restriction with health information and alternative water source information; and (3-31-22)

~~fe.~~ Inspect the pesticide applicator records within the restricted area. (3-31-22)

**04. Level Four Response.** When a pesticide or its metabolite(s) is detected at or above one hundred percent (100%) of the reference point, the Director shall: (3-31-22)

a. Implement actions in Subsection 200.03 in the area of pesticide detection; (3-31-22)

b. Establish an area of pesticide prohibition, ~~in accordance with Section 400 of this rule and Section 22-3418, Idaho Code,~~ when the Director has determined ground water contamination resulted from the application of a pesticide in accordance with the label; ~~(3-31-22)( )~~

c. Implement use prohibition area(s); (3-31-22)

d. Assist persons within the use prohibition area with health and alternative water source information; (3-31-22)

e. Determine effectiveness of regulatory actions. (3-31-22)

**05. Mixing and Loading Prohibited.** No person shall mix or load the prohibited pesticide product in an identified pesticide prohibition area unless the mixing and loading is conducted over a spill containment surface which complies with the Idaho NRCS Conservation Practice Standard, Agrichemical Mixing Facility Code 702. (3-31-22)

~~06. Prohibition Areas.~~ No person shall apply a prohibited pesticide within the corresponding pesticide area boundaries of the area of pesticide prohibition as identified in Section 400. ~~(3-31-22)~~

**201. -- 299. (RESERVED)**

**300. GROUND WATER MONITORING PROGRAMS.**

~~01. Monitoring Programs.~~ The Director shall conduct monitoring programs to: (3-31-22)

~~a.~~ Determine whether residues of pesticides are present in ground water; (3-31-22)

~~b.~~ Refine vulnerability mapping products or other assessment tools; (3-31-22)

~~c.~~ Determine the effectiveness of BMPs; and (3-31-22)

~~d.~~ Determine the effectiveness of regulatory approaches. (3-31-22)

~~02. Conduct Monitoring Programs.~~ The Director shall conduct monitoring programs in compliance with the Department's EPA approved QMP and applicable QAPPs. (3-31-22)

~~03. Evaluation.~~ The Director shall evaluate ground water pesticide(s) data from sources other than the Department for use in implementing this rule. (3-31-22)

**301. -- 399. (RESERVED)**

**400. DETERMINING PESTICIDE AREA BOUNDARIES.**

~~Section 400 describes the methods for determining the pesticide area boundaries for the response levels in Section 200.~~ (3-31-22)

**01. Pesticide Area Boundary Factors.** In determining the area of pesticide concern, restricted area, or prohibition area the Director ~~shall implement Section 200 and~~ may consider ~~but not be limited to~~ the following



factors:

~~(3-31-22)~~(    )

- a. Pesticide detections from reliable ground water test samples; (3-31-22)
- b. Number and frequency of detections; (3-31-22)
- c. Statistical trends of detections; (3-31-22)
- d. Location of detections; (3-31-22)
- e. Hydrogeology of the aquifer; (3-31-22)
- f. Well depth and construction; (3-31-22)
- g. Aquifer vulnerability and susceptibility; (3-31-22)
- h. Pesticide physical and chemical characteristics; (3-31-22)
- i. Pesticide use; or (3-31-22)
- j. Other scientifically defensible information. (3-31-22)

~~**02. Determining Boundaries.** An area of pesticide concern, restricted area, or a prohibition area may encompass land areas which, in the Director's judgment, are susceptible to pesticide contamination of ground water based on the factors identified in Subsection 400.01. The boundaries of an area of pesticide concern, restricted area, or a prohibition area shall be sufficient to meet Section 200 requirements. The boundaries may include any of the following:~~ (3-31-22)

- ~~a. Mapped boundaries between soil types or other hydrogeologic features; (3-31-22)~~
- ~~b. Ground water or surface water divides such as watershed boundaries; (3-31-22)~~
- ~~c. Legal land description boundaries; (3-31-22)~~
- ~~d. Public roads; or (3-31-22)~~
- ~~e. Other recognizable boundaries. (3-31-22)~~

401. -- 409. (RESERVED)

#### 410. REPEALING SPECIFIC PESTICIDE AREAS.

**01. Repealing an Area of Pesticide Concern.** The Director may repeal or reduce the size of an area of pesticide concern in response to pesticide contamination in ground water if all the following conditions ~~in Subsection 410.01~~ are met: (3-31-22)(    )

a. Tests on at least three (3) consecutive ground water samples, drawn from each well site in the area of pesticide concern at which the concentration of a pesticide and its metabolites previously were found at twenty percent (20%) to fifty percent (50%) of the reference point, show that the concentration at the well sites has fallen to and remains less than twenty percent (20%) of the reference point. The three (3) consecutive samples shall be collected at each well site at intervals of at least six (6) months, with the first sample being collected at least six (6) months after the effective date of the area of pesticide concern designation. A monitoring well approved by the Director may be substituted for any well site which is no longer available for testing. (3-31-22)

b. Tests conducted at other well sites in the area of pesticide concern during the same retesting period, if any, reveal no other concentrations of the pesticide or its metabolites that exceed twenty percent (20%) of the reference point; and (3-31-22)

c. The Director determines, based on credible scientific evidence, that use of a pesticide product in the area of pesticide concern is not likely to cause a renewed detection between twenty percent (20%) to fifty percent (50%) of the reference point. (3-31-22)

**02. Repealing an Area of Pesticide Restriction.** The Director may repeal or reduce the size of an area of pesticide restriction in response to ground water pesticide contamination if all the following conditions ~~in Subsection 410.02~~ are met: (3-31-22)(    )

a. Tests on at least three (3) consecutive ground water samples, drawn from each well site in the area of pesticide restriction at which the concentration of a pesticide and its metabolites previously were found at fifty percent (50%) to less than one hundred percent (100%) of the reference point, show that the concentration at the well sites has fallen to and remains less than fifty percent (50%) of the reference point. The three (3) consecutive samples shall be collected at each well site at intervals of at least six (6) months, with the first sample being collected at least six (6) months after the effective date of the area of the pesticide restriction designation. A monitoring well approved by the Director may be substituted for any well site which is no longer available for testing. As areas of pesticide restriction are repealed, the area automatically becomes an area of pesticide concern; (3-31-22)

b. Tests conducted at other well sites in the area of pesticide restriction during the same retesting period, if any, reveal no other concentrations of the pesticide or its metabolites that exceed fifty percent (50%) of the reference point; and (3-31-22)

c. The Director determines, based on credible scientific evidence, that use of a pesticide product in the area of pesticide restriction is not likely to cause a renewed exceedance of fifty percent (50%) of the reference point. (3-31-22)

**03. Repealing an Area of Pesticide Use Prohibition.** The Director may repeal or reduce the size of an area of pesticide use prohibition in response to ground water pesticide contamination if all the following conditions ~~in Subsection 410.03~~ are met: (3-31-22)(    )

a. Tests on at least three (3) consecutive ground water samples, drawn from each well site in the prohibition area at which the concentration of a pesticide and its metabolites previously attained or exceeded the reference point, show that the concentration at that well site has fallen to and remains less than fifty percent (50%) of the reference point. The three (3) consecutive samples shall be collected at each well site at intervals of at least six (6) months, with the first sample being collected at least six (6) months after the effective date of the pesticide use prohibition designation. A monitoring well approved by the Director may be substituted for any well site which is no longer available for testing. As areas of pesticide prohibition are repealed, the area automatically becomes an area of pesticide concern; (3-31-22)

b. Tests conducted at other well sites in the area of pesticide prohibition during the same retesting period, if any, reveal no other concentrations of the pesticide and its metabolites that exceed fifty percent (50%) of the reference point; and (3-31-22)

c. The Director determines, based on credible scientific evidence, that renewed use of a pesticide product in the area of pesticide prohibition is not likely to cause a renewed violation of the reference point. (3-31-22)

~~411.—419.~~ (RESERVED)

~~420. ADVISORY COMMITTEE.~~

~~When pesticide management practices are needed under Section 200, the Director's advisory committee, as established pursuant to Section 22-103, Idaho Code, shall provide appropriate guidance on this rule. This advisory committee shall include but is not limited to: applicators from the area of pesticide detection; pesticide, water user, and commodity groups; University of Idaho Extension staff and specialists; and staff from the USDA, NRCS, SCC, DEQ, and the Department. The duties of the advisory committee include but are not limited to the following:~~

~~(3-31-22)~~

~~01. Review Existing Information.~~ Review the existing information related to the area of pesticide

~~detection and develop pesticide management practices options; (3-31-22)~~

~~**02. Recommendations.** Make recommendations to the Director for approval of pesticide management practices prior to implementation at the voluntary and regulatory levels; (3-31-22)~~

~~**03. Research.** Evaluate the potential for gaining government or private research or cost share funding; and (3-31-22)~~

~~**04. Evaluate Effectiveness.** Review information related to pesticide management practices effectiveness and make recommendations for changing and improving pesticide management practices. (3-31-22)~~

~~**421. PESTICIDE USE AND RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS.**~~

~~Pursuant to Title 22, Chapter 34, Idaho Code, and IDAPA 02.03.03, "Rules Governing Pesticide and Chemigation Use and Application," the Director shall inspect pesticide records to meet the need as described in Section 200. (3-31-22)~~

~~422~~11. -- 999. (RESERVED)